
 

 

State of Oklahoma 
Office of State Finance Amendment of Solicitation 

Information Services Division 

Date of Issuance: 03/22/2012 Solicitation No. 8300001049 

Requisition No. 8300019790 Amendment No. 2 

Hours and date specified for receipt of offers is changed: No Yes, to: 05/01/2012 at 3:00PM CST/CDT 

Pursuant to OAC 580:15-4-5©, this document shall serve as official notice of amendment to the Solicitation identified 
above. Such notice is being provided to all suppliers to which the original solicitation was sent. Suppliers submitting bids 
or quotations shall acknowledge receipt of this solicitation amendment prior to the hour and date specified in the 
solicitation as follows: 

(1) Sign and return a copy of this amendment with the solicitation response being submitted; or, 
(2) If the supplier has already submitted a response, this acknowledgement must be signed and returned prior to the 

solicitation deadline. All amendment acknowledgements submitted separately shall have the solicitation number 
and bid opening date printed clearly on the front of the envelope. 

ISSUED BY AND RETURN TO: 

Office of State Finance 
ISD Procurement Attn: Gai Hunter 
3115 N. Lincoln Blvd. 
Oklahoma City, OK 73105 

Gai Hunter 
Contracting Officer 

Phone Number  
405-521-6480 

E-Mail Address 
gai.hunter@osf.ok.gov 

Description of Amendment: 
a. This is to incorporate the following: 

Note: This amendment has extended the RFP closing date to May 1st, 2012 at 3:00PM Central time. 

The following section has been added to the RFP: 
B.14. Either contractor or State may terminate the contract for default or other just cause with both a 120-day written 
request and upon written approval from the State. The State may terminate the contract immediately (without a 120-day 
written notice to the contractor) if violations or severe deficiency in delivery of services exist, if circumstances dictate that  
A.20. Non-Appropriation Clause is appropriate, or when the State determines that an administrative error occurred prior to 
contract performance.  

If the contract is terminated, the State shall be liable only for payment for products and services previously delivered and 
accepted.  

All questions and Answers: 
1. Will a daily feed-file be provided from the OAS (i.e., file that contains data elements related to all support cases)?  

If so, what data elements are provided in this file?  
Response to #1: No file (daily or other frequency) is sent to the SDU from OSIS.  There is only a one-time start up 
file. 

b. All other terms and conditions remain unchanged. 
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2. What is the current price per transaction that is being paid for receipts processed by the OCSR?  

Response to #2: Currently it is $0.993. 

3. What is the current monthly invoice total for the OCSR (averaged for the most recent six month timeframe)?  
Response to #3: $185,652.16 for receipt processing only. 

4. Is the OCSR required to accommodate for walk-in payments?  
Response to #4: No. 

5. Please provide current organizational chart for the current OCSR with position titles and FTE per position.  
Response to #5: The state does not have access to that information 

6. How many phone inquiries are received on an average day?  How many email inquiries are received on an 
average day?  How many fax or other correspondence are received on an average day? 
Response to #6: Phone Calls – 20 per day.  Many of these could be call backs to messages regarding payment 
issues. 
Fax – 0 - 1 per day. 
Emails – 9 – 10 

7. What is the physical address of the current OCSR office?   
Response to #7: 101 N Robinson STE 1130 OKC, OK 73102 

8. What is the square footage of the current office?  
Response to #8: We believe that the current space is 5500 sq ft. 

9. Section C.2.1. The RFP states that collections for SFY 2011 were $337,326,347.  In Attachment 1 it states that 
SDU Case Statistics, total OCSR collections (including OCSS, OTC, OESC, Interstate, and SSA) for the period 
September 2010 – September 2011 were $297,037,801 ($40,626,374 personal + $256,411,427 employer).  Why 
were the OCSS collections of $337,326,347 for the SFY 2011 so much higher than the OCSR collections for the 
period shown in Attachment 1?  
Response to #9: The total collections $337 million includes OCSS distributed IVD collections of $297 million, Non-
IVD collections, collections for our Tribal Child Support services across the state that use the Oklahoma computer 
system, and collections that were eventually refunded (overpayments). 

10. Section C.2.5.1. Are the payer billing statements generated by OCSS bar-coded to facilitate payer identification?  
Response to #10: Our automated system automatically generates the billing statement from our central Docgen 
system using a batch process. Docgen pulls case and participant data from our automated system for developing 
the text of the document, but at this time our automated system does not bar code participant information onto the 
document. We are however moving toward a new product called Adobe Live Cycle for our Docgen needs that will 
allow this type of bar code to occur but we are still months away for having this new product integrated with our 
automated system. 

11. Section C.2.5.11. Regarding the receipts that may be moved and processed in-house; please provide a break 
down as to the number currently received electronically versus those received via paper.  
Response to #11: All of the proposed receipts to move in-house are electronic, none are paper. 

12. Section C.3.1.11. Please verify our assumption that this RFP reference includes misapplied payments (e.g. 
payments applied to the incorrect payer)?  If so, please provide the current misapplied payment rate.  
Response to #12: Your assumption is correct.  The average number of misapplied payments for the last 6 months 
is 36.67 per month. 

13. Section C.3.2.2. Paper payments (i.e. payments not received electronically) – Please provide the percentage of 
paper payments received by day of the week.  
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Response to #13: (OKDHS does not have access to a full list of paper vs electronic) The breakdown by month for 
the last 6 months can be found in the second attachment for these questions.  The % of electronic continues to 
rise so we expect those numbers to grow. 

14. Section C.3.2.2. Are support payments currently processed on Saturdays at the OCSR? Response to #14:  Yes  

15. Section C.3.2.2.3.1. Are batch-transferred files currently provided to OCSS by the OCSR Monday through 
Saturday?  
Response to #15: Monday through Friday. 

16. Section C.3.2.3.1. How early can mail be picked up from the OCSS provided Post Office Boxes? Response to 
#16: The mail is put in the PO boxes by 10:30am each day.  The facility is open 24 hours for pick up. 

17. Section C.3.2.2.2. What is OCSS’s approach for accessing imaged documents?  
Response to #17: The vendor is responsible for providing OCSS access to imaged documents.   

18. Section C.3.2.3.4.14. In regards to this RFP section: 
18.1. Please define ‘Collections with debt designations.’   

  Response to #18.1: These are overpayments made to the CP and need to be logged as an E distribution 
code. 

18.2. Are these collections specific to Personal payments received via paper or can electronic payments also 
be designated to a specific debt?   

Response to #18.2: It can be in the form of either paper payments or electronic payments. 

18.3. What is the current volume?   
Response to #18.3: 710 for the last six months.  The numbers are higher during tax season. 

18.4. Do all payments need to be manually screened for debt designations?   

Response to #18.4: Yes 

18.5. How are debt designations communicated to the OAS as Attachment 2 states that the Obligation 
Sequence is optional and should be left blank?   

Response to #18.5: Via logging as E payment type. 

19. Section C.3.2.4.8. In regards to this RFP section that states “2) accept credit and debit card payments through a 
web-based application, and 3) accept and process payments by bank drafts…”: Will the current web-based 
application continue to be used or is the winning bidder required to provide their own web-based application?  
Response to #19: We are required to use the State system – OK.gov.  There would need to be an overlay / front 
page that would link to OK.gov, where is ultimately where the information is entered. 

20. Section C.3.2.4.8. What entity is Oklahoma’s supplier for clearing credit card transactions?   
Response to #20: Bank of America. 

21. Section C.3.2.4.8. How are collection detailed received through the web-based application reconciled to the funds 
deposited into the Treasurer’s bank account?  What entity is responsible for this process? 
Response to #21: The collections are deposited into the OCSS bank account at Chase by Bank of America Merchant 
Services.  Then they are swept from there by the Oklahoma State Treasurer into our special 1830F account held at 
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the Treasurer’s Office. 
OCSS & OCSR receive a daily e-mail from OK.Gov that has the detail records of all the payments made for that day 
and the total amount. 

OCSS uses the daily e-mail to verify the amount deposited into our Chase account is correct and to verify the amount 
OCSR logs to OSIS.  OCSR downloads a report from OK.Gov to verify what they download against the amount 
noted on the e-mails. 

22. Section C.3.2.6. Several references exist in the RFP regarding the creation of new NON-IV-D cases (C.3.2.6 and 
C.3.2.1.3).  Please outline the steps required to create a new NON-IV-D case. 
Response to #22: This is work performed by another vendor and not part of the OCSR contract.  Should the OCSR 
receive a first payment for a non-IVD case that has not yet been created, they would need to contact the non-IVD 
vendor for case creation. 

23. Section C.3.2.8.3 Please verify that the winning bidder will not be required to fund the first check or WebPay direct 
debit that is returned unpaid.  
Response to #23: That’s correct. 

24. Section E.7.2. The RFP requires bidders to complete and submit a “Solicitation Request” with original signature.  
How can a bidder obtain this document? 
Response to #24: This is an error. The solicitation request mentioned in Section E.7.2 is actually the same form as 
mentioned in Section E.7.1 and may accompany with the supplier’s letter containing any information the supplier 
wishes to bring to the attention of OKDHS. The two forms mentioned in E.7.1. have been posted on our Website as 
two separate files. 

25. Section H. In evaluating costs, will all fees provided by bidders for contract years one through seven be considered?  
Response to #25: Yes. 

26. Is it a correct assumption that the payment figures provided in the Attachment 1 spreadsheet (i.e. Sep-10, 13939 
payments, $3,147,777…) represent paper payments received during the timeframe indicated?   
Response to #26: No, these include all payment types. 

27. Regarding the electronic payment dollar amounts found in Attachment 1, please provide the number of electronic 
payments processed from October 2010 to September 2011 for each type (e.g. Credit Cards, Debit Cards, EFT 
Imports, Kiosk Payments). 
Response to #27: Credit cards-5563; debit cards-7534; kiosk-5584, EFT 144,190(EFT estimated). 

28. Attachment #1. Kiosk Payment totals are provided in this attachment.  Please outline the Kiosk payment process and 
the requirements for this functionality.   
Response to #28: See the Kiosk Training Minute attachment.  These payments are sent to OCSS Monday through 
Friday via EFT. 

29. Attachment #2. Please clarify the Description and Comments applicable to the Distribution Code.   The Description 
and Comments found in the attachment #2 appear to be the same as the Case Identifier. 
Response to #29: This is an error under Distribution code.  It should read as follows:   
Description :  Identifies the type of payment at a high level  
Comment:  High level categories are voluntary payment, income withholding payment, payment from another state, 
etc.   

30. Please confirm that the Attachment 1: SDU Case Statistics (for the period September 2010 – September 2011) of 
179,907 from individuals and 1,961,747 from employers represent billable OCSR transactions. If these are not all 
billable OCSR transactions, please explain.  
Response to #30: These are all billable receipt transactions. 
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31. Since the Applications are no longer included in the scope of work, will the State use the existing PO Box to receive 
Applications and will the State be responsible for picking up the Applications from the PO Box on a daily basis?  
Response to #31: The State will be responsible for all of the handling of the mail regarding applications.  It is 
unknown whether we will keep the existing PO Box or utilize another existing one. 

32. If the contractor is expected to pay for their errors, dollar-for-dollar, within 30 days, how will the State reconcile with 
the contractor how much the State has recovered back from the participant?  
Response to #32: We do not create a bad debt against the CP, therefore, we do not anticipate getting any recovery 
from the customer.   

33. Which contractor positions require “special background checks” in order to obtain an access code to the State’s 
system? Will drug tests and background checks performed by a contracted temporary staffing agency suffice?  
Response to #33: Our concern in asking for enhanced background checks is ensuring that the State’s risk is low and 
that the contractor employees be aware of the significant trust that the public is placing in the operations of the SDU.  
Temporary agency drug tests and background tests should be sufficient if they check for, among other things, 
financially related offenses and if contractor regularly verifies with temporary agency that agency is continuing to 
maintain background checks on their hires. 

34. Would the State consider the addition of force majeure language to protect both parties? 
Response to #34: No 

35. Would the State consider compensating the Vendor for any unrecoverable costs incurred by delay of the program 
due to acts or omissions of the State? 
Response to #35: We do not guarantee any payment to a vendor for an unbudgeted for and unforeseeable amount, 
as we are legislatively funded.  However, we do consider equitable adjustment when funds are available and 
circumstances warrant at the sole discretion of the State and approved by DCS. 

36. Section A.16. Would the State please confirm that in the matter of acceptance of deliverables:  
36.1. the standard is the reasonable, industry-wide standard of material conformance to specifications;  

Response to #36.1: No, the standard is as provided by the RFP...this is the quality and conformance to 
specifications that we’ve requested and expect. 

36.2. the evidence for acceptance will be in writing;  
Response to #36.2: This is primarily a service contract and many of the deliverables are evaluated over 
time and may or may not result in specific feedback to the vendor. 

36.3. that if not given within fifteen (15) days after Vendor’s delivery of deliverable such acceptance will be 
deemed granted;   

Response to #36.3: No, Please see A.40.   The State will not agree to a waiver of contract performance 
simply because service delivery deficiency was not identified within 15 days. 

36.4. such acceptance will be irrevocable; and  
Response to #36.4: See response below 

36.5. such acceptance shall not apply to regular services? 

Response to #36.5: The acceptance qualifiers that you’ve proposed will not be acceptable to us for any 
type of services or materials provided.  The timing factors as well as the fact that you seem to be asking 
the State and therefore the public to accept materials or performance that may be substandard is not 
acceptable to us.  The State expects a guarantee of quality that is consistent and continuing over the full 
period of the contract. 

37. Sections A.17. and B.12. Would the State agree to pay within 30 days net after receipt of a proper invoice? 
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Response to #37: No, 62 O.S. 34.71 allows State Finance 45 days from the date invoice is received to issue 
payment. 

38. Section A.23. Would the State agree to provide the Vendor with a reasonable cure period prior to any termination for 
cause? 
Response to #38: The following clause from the RFP addresses our approach to whether a vendor should be 
allowed opportunity to correct behavior or actions leading to consideration of termination for cause: 

B.3. Contract Administration  
OCSS will follow a progressive contract administration plan for the purposes of managing the contractor’s 
performance under the contract. It is OCSS’s intent to work with the contractor to resolve all contract performance 
and quality issues. However, OCSS will not accept contract performance below stated RFP requirements and 
standards. Depending on the severity of the problem, progressive contract administration actions may include a 
notice of deficiency or breach, request for Corrective Action Plan, and a recommended termination of contract either 
complete or partial. 

39. Section A.23. Would the State agree to provide the Vendor the same termination for cause conditions as the state 
itself enjoys (i.e., not require the state’s written approval as an additional condition)? 
Response to #39: No, the State does not agree to alternate termination conditions. 

40. Section A.24. Would the State agree to compensate the Vendor for any unamortized costs and reasonable wind-
down costs in the event of a termination for convenience? 
Response to #40: No, the State cannot agree to such compensation.  

41. Section A.24. Would the State consider equitable adjustment of pricing in the event of a termination in part by the 
State? 
Response to #41: The State cannot commit to pricing adjustment in such event. 

42. Section A.25. Is the State amenable to adjusting insurance language to match the Vendor’s current insurance 
policies providing that the coverage is sufficient?   
Response to #42: No. 

43. Section A.44. Would the State consider capping the Vendor liability to an amount equal to the total amount that the 
customer has paid the Vendor in the 12 months prior to the incident in the preceding 12 months?
Response to #43: No, For more information about why the State cannot agree to limitation on vendor  liability, please 
see 2006 OK AG 11

44. Section A.44. Is the State amenable to agreeing that neither party shall be liable for indirect, consequential, punitive, 
special, or incidental damages? 
Response to #44: No, see response to previous item.

45. Based upon the language contained in Section A. 51, Ownership Rights, and Section A.52, Right of Use, in the RFP, 
it is our understanding that any pre-existing intellectual property and/or commercial off the shelf products that a 
Bidder or its subcontractors utilize for the project shall be considered a “Utility” and shall remain the exclusive 
property of the Vendor or its respective subcontractors.  Would the State please confirm that this interpretation of the 
RFP requirements is correct?
Response to #45: Yes, except to the extent the "utility" may be modified for the State's sole and exclusive use.

46. Section A.52. Would the State agree to allow a vendor a non-exclusive, irrevocable license to use such intellectual 
property as it creates for the State under the contract? 
Response to #46: No.

47. The RFP language contained in Section A.53, Source Code Escrow, assumes that the Vendor and its subcontractors
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are developing software specifically for the State’s SDU project and requires that such software’s source code be 
kept in escrow.  Since software is not being developed specifically for the State’s SDU project, would the State please 
confirm that this requirement is not applicable to the SDU project? 
Response to #47: Any development or modification to vendor and its subcontractors’ software will be subject to the 
Source Code Escrow term. 

48. Section B.5 asks vendors to meet the requirements of IRS Publication 1075, yet Paragraph C.3.2.4.10 states that 
“payments to OCSS from IRS are not included in the contract.”  Please clarify the apparent inconsistency. Is the State 
seeking a vendor’s compliance with Publication 1075 because of other tax (OK for example) and PII data that will be 
processed by the SRU?  
Response to #48: Yes 
And/or is the State reserving the right to send FTI to the SRU at a later date?  
Response to #48: No 

49. Section B.6.9 states “All hardcopy records that contain OK DHS sensitive information must be disposed of through a 
cross cut paper shredder (shredding both vertically and horizontally) or an equivalent secure destruction process.”  
For sensitive hardcopy records, e.g., payment source documents, how long must these documents be securely 
retained before document destruction can occur?   
Response to #49: 30 days 

50. Section C.2.5.11. This requirement says there is a “programming proposal… which may result in approximately 18% 
of current receipts being shifted to in-house processing.”  How will this effort/team interface with the vendor selected 
to maintain the OCSR? 
Response to #50: OCSS will notify the OCSR vendor that they will no longer be receiving the EFT payments for 
these entities and therefore, will not be processing those receipts.  

51. Section C.2.5.11. Are the receipts that potentially shift to in-house processing paper or electronic receipts?  Will the 
State provide the related volume of paper vs. electronic? 
Response to #51: 100%, all are electronic. 

52. Sections 3.1.2 and C.3.2.8.1. Would the State please clarify if electronic deposit is required? 
Response to #52: Yes, the daily deposit of SDU receipts to OCSS must be done electronically.The deposit to Chase 
must be done electronically.  We don’t receive the deposit from them, only a file. 

53. Section C.3.2.1.3. This RFP section refers readers to another section: “(additional requirements are described in the 
section titled “Payments for Non-IV-D Cases” C.3.2.7):” Did the State mean to refer to vendors to C.3.2.6, “Payments 
for Non-IV-D Cases”?  
Response to #53: Yes. 

54. Section C.3.2.3.1. At what USPS facility do the OCSS PO Boxes reside.  Is the mail picked up at the Processing and 
Distribution Center at 4025 West Reno Ave?   
Response to #54: Effective April 2, 2012,3 of our payment Post office boxes will remain at the Reno location 
(employers, interstate & single payors) while the Post Office box facility for FIDM payments is moving to 701 N Kelley 
Ave. 

55. Section C.3.2.4.11 states: 
C.3.2.4.11.Checks received on which written and numeric amounts do not agree. (Process if research determines 
the written amount is the correct amount. Otherwise Supplier will return the check and payment identification 
document to the payor with an appropriate form letter requesting clarification); 
and Section C.3.2.7 states: 
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C.3.2.7. Mailing Responsibilities: OCSS will assume the responsibility for mailing items, previously described herein, 
that must be returned to senders. Supplier will deliver the items, in pre-addressed envelopes, containing Supplier-
prepared return correspondence, if applicable, to OCSS, for mailing. 
Should Supplier plan to return the check and payment document to the payor or deliver the items to OCSS? 
Response to #55: These checks are returned to the payor by OCSS.  OCSR will staple the letter to the receipt, seal 
the envelope, and have it ready for pick up by the OCSS courier who will deliver it to the OCSS mailroom for postage 
and mailing.  
Does the State plan to reimburse Supplier the postage costs? 
Response to #55: N/A 

56. Section C.3.2.3.3. Requirement says “Documents must be imaged and viewable when accessed by OCSS’s 
system.”  Would it be acceptable to the State for those images to be viewable in the contractor’s system or does the 
State require that images be transmitted to OAS? 
Response to #56: That is acceptable.  OCSS has the right to approve or deny the contractor’s system. 

57. Section C.3.2.6. Please clarify who has the responsibility to create the new OAS case.  Is this the Vendor or OCSS? 
Response to #57: OCSS. 

58. Section C.3.2.4.8. Would the State provide a description of the process the contractor must engage to “connect with 
and process information to Oklahoma’s Supplier for clearing credit card transactions”?  How will the cash and 
payment data be transmitted to the SDU for credit card and bank draft payments?   
Response to #58: The collections are deposited into the OCSS bank account at Chase by Bank of America Merchant 
Services.  Then they are swept from there by Oklahoma State Treasure into our special 1830F account held at the 
Treasurer’s Office. 

OCSS & OCSR receive a daily e-mail from OK.Gov that has the detail records of all the payments made for that day 
and the total amount. 

OCSS uses the daily e-mail to verify the amount deposited into our Chase account is correct and to verify the amount 
OCSR logs to OSIS.  OCSR downloads a report from OK.Gov to verify what they download against the amount 
noted on the e-mails. 

Would the State consider alternative solutions for processing payments by credit card and bank draft? 
Response to #58: Yes. 

59. Section C.3.2.4.8. Would the State elaborate on what is required to “enroll employers and others desiring to make 
electronic payments? 
Response to #59: The primary contact for an employer to request EFT information is the Employer Service Center 
(ESC) operated by another vendor.  However, If an employer contacts OCSS or OCSR for information on sending 
payments via EFT, the vendor would send the employer the EFT information packet and provide their contact 
information should the employer have any questions. 

60. Does the state intend to hold negotiations? 
Response to #60: Negotiations are optional as stated in the heading of this section. 

61. D.3 indicates that all issues are negotiable while D.3.4 indicates that the requirements of the RFP shall not be 
negotiable.  Is the State amenable to considering alternate contract language? 
Response to #61: D.3.4. states that “…. unless the State determines that a change in such requirements is in the 
best interest of the State Of Oklahoma.” This means while the State would not normally negotiate the mandatory 
requirements, the State would consider a revision only when the revision is in the best interest of the State. 

62. Section D.5 states as follows: 
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This RFP will be evaluated on the following:  
D.5.1. Technical Proposal: organization, content, and quality of proposal, and adherence to solicitation requirements; 
available resources designated for this contract.  
D.5.2. Past Performance: prior experience and references from contacted sources as well as how this experience 
may relate to Scope of Work in the RFP. Evaluation may include review of Better Business Bureau records as well as 
Oklahoma Department of Central Services vendor file materials.  
D.5.3. Company Staffing and Financial Resources: management of company, staff experience, and financial capacity 
of company.  
D.5.4. Pricing 

Would the State respectively provide the relative weights and/or scoring of each category? 
Response to #62: The State does not disclose weighting in scoring and evaluation. 

63. Section E.6.3. Does the State prefer that vendors include their confidential information as a complete separate 
document/volume or is it acceptable that this information be included with the main proposal response, but readily 
separable – such as an Appendix? 
Response to #63: It is acceptable that the confidential information be included with the main proposal response and 
marked “confidential”. 

64. Section E.7. The RFP states: “The Supplier must specifically address and respond to each item in the RFP, stating 
whether the submission does or does not meet the stated requirements.” 
For clarity would the State please list the sections of the RFP that Suppliers should specifically respond to? 
Response to #64: To ensure the best possible scoring outcome, Supplier should respond specifically to all sections 
of the RFP 

65. Section E.7.2. Instructions require vendors to complete Solicitation Request (with original signature). Would the State 
please provide this document? 
Response to #65: See response to #24. 

66. Section E.7.3. This section asks the vendor to provide in its proposal various “plans” in addition to a typical Work Plan 
such as:  summary plan, detailed plan for staffing, disaster emergency plan, project implementation plan and security 
plan.  Is it the State’s intention that the vendor submit formal and separate plans for each of these functions, or is the 
methodology for achieving the objectives to be presented in the proposal text itself and the plans themselves would 
be project deliverables after contract award? 
Response to #66: The plans may be a part of the text in the proposal with specific designation as to it being the plan 
for staffing, etc.  Whether set out separately or as a blend with text, they must be submitted with the proposal to 
avoid any possibility of losing points in the evaluation process.  If some portion of the plan remains unknown, as a 
staffing position, please state this in your proposal. 

67. Section E.7.3.10. Is it permissible for a vendor to provide two prices/locations, one in-state and one out-of-state or 
perhaps two proposals?  
Response to #67: It is neither required nor desirable for the vendor to submit two separate proposal documents in 
this circumstance; it is only necessary for the vendor to submit the different locations and prices with some plan for 
each alternative. 

68. Section E.7.6. Does the State prefer that vendors include their cost response with the technical proposal or as a 
separate volume?   
Response to #68: The preferred method is to include the pricing in only one section of the proposal and clearly label 
as “pricing” 
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69. Section C.2.1 states SFY2011 collections were $337,326,347. Attachment 1 shows a total for the 10 months 

September 2010 - June 2011 of $226,216,152.  The difference is $111,110,195. Would the State please explain the 
difference between the amounts in C.2.1 and Attachment 1? 
Response to #69: Attachment one shows a total of $297,037,801. The total collections $337 million includes OCSS 
distributed IVD collections of $297 million, Non-IVD collections, collections for our Tribal Child Support services 
across the state that use the Oklahoma computer system, and collections that were eventually refunded. 

70. Attachment 1 contains a table that has 13 months of statistics. Are the statistics below the table (electronic receipts 
and receipts from specific sources) also for the same 13 month period? If not, please clarify the period of time 
covered by the information below the table. 
Response to #70: Yes. 

71. Attachment 1 Would the State provide the number of payments for each of the electronic amounts? 
Response to #71: Credit cards-5563; debit cards-7534; kiosk-5584, EFT 144,190(EFT estimated). 

72. Attachment 1 Would the State provide a breakout of the other sources payments between electronic and paper? 
Response to #72: High level breakdown for all payments is $131,540,822 electronic & $165,496,979 paper on 
attachment 1.  For the last 6 months the number of each payment type is 85,575 electronic and 405,168 paper. 

73. RFP Attachments 3, 4, and 5 appear to require execution by project personnel during the term of the contract.  Would 
the State please confirm that these Attachments do not need to be executed and submitted with a Vendor’s 
proposal? 
Response to #73: Correct, they are examples. 
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